
WASHINGTON STATE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION PUBLIC 

MEETING - February 2019

Hampton Inn & Suites
4301 Martin Way E.
Olympia, WA 98516



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

January Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 
Hampton Inn & Suites 4301 Martin Way E. Olympia 

Public Meeting  
January 10, 2019 

 
Commissioners Present:                                      
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair  
Chris Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy  

Ex Officio Members Present:  
 

 
Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Executive Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director; Brian Considine, Legal and 
Legislative Manager; Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison; Heather Songer, Public Information Officer; 
Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant; and Suzanne Becker, Assistant Attorney General.  
 
Public Meeting Call to Order 
Chair Bud Sizemore called the Gambling Commission meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. He 
announced that the commissioners would be going into executive session and that the estimated 
time for the public meeting to start was 12:00 p.m. In executive session, the commissioners 
discussed litigation, pending investigations and tribal negotiations for approximately 90 minutes. 
The last 30 minutes of executive session was dedicated to discussing legal matters. 
 
At 12:01 p.m., Chair Sizemore welcomed everyone to the Hampton Inn & Suites and to the first 
meeting of 2019; introductions were made.   
 
Chair Sizemore asked for a moment of silence to recognize law enforcement officers across the 
country and in this state who were lost in the line of duty since we last met.  
 
There were 25 people in attendance.    
 
Tab 1 
Commissioner Levy moved to approve the November 15, 2018 minutes as presented by staff. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion. 
The motion was passed 4:0 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the new licenses and Class III employee licensees 
as presented by staff. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 3:0  
Commissioner Levy abstained.  
 



2 
 

Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the Class III certifications for the Snoqualmie and 
Cowlitz tribes. 
Commissioner Levy seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 3:0 
Commissioner Stearns abstained. 
Commissioner Troyer was not present for the voting for Tab 1. 
  
Director’s Report   
Director Trujillo attended the annual Gaming Law Summit in December. Commissioner 
Stearns, Legal and Legislative Manager Brian Considine and Director Trujillo presented at the 
summit.  Commissioner Levy also attended the Gaming Law Summit via webinar. Director 
Trujillo gave an update on the problem gambling study. He announced that the study will be 
presented at the February commission meeting. Any questions regarding the process of the study 
can be directed to Mr. Considine. The report is due to the Legislature on February 15, 2019-- the 
day after the commission meeting. Chair Sizemore asked if the public would have a chance to 
comment. Director Trujillo said the public can submit comments at the February 14, 2019 
commission meeting.  Staff recognition: Director Trujillo recognized Ms. Cathee Gottfryd for 
her 35 years of service to the State of Washington. Ms. Gottfryd started her career at the 
Department of Labor and, in 1999, was hired at the Gambling Commission. She is currently a 
licensing specialist in the Licensing, Regulation and Enforcement Division. Photographs were 
taken. 
 
Tab 2 
Petition for Review – Numerica Credit Union   
Chad Standifer, Assistant Attorney General (AAG) presented the materials for this tab on 
behalf of the State of Washington. Ms. Shelley Ripley represented Numerica Credit Union 
(NCU) via phone in case number CR 2018-00200. AAG Standifer, presented arguments before 
the commissioners. NCU’s original raffle application was denied by staff. NCU appealed the 
decision and an administrative law judge (ALJ) found that NCU should be granted a license. 
AAG Standifer argued to the Commissioners that they should not adopt the ALJ’s decision 
because a license is prohibited under the Gambling Act and should uphold the Director’s 
decision to deny NCU a license.  Ms. Ripley argued the Commissioners have the authority to 
grant NCU a license and they should adopt the ALJ’s initial order granting her client a license. 
Commissioner Stearns asked why the Legislature would treat the credit unions differently.  
Chair Sizemore indicated that a lobbying group or an affected individual doesn’t have to lobby 
for or against something for it to apply to them. During oral argument, Commissioner Troyer 
voiced initial support for NCU’s position, but stated he would listen to testimony in order to 
make a final decision. He stated that he supports credit unions in general and the work they do in 
the community. He raised the idea of recusing himself from the Commission’s final decision 
since he is the chair of a local credit union, and stated he would discuss this with the legal 
manager.  Chair Sizemore asked that the room be cleared so the commissioners could go into 
closed session. 
 
 
Chair Sizemore reconvened the meeting after a 20-minute closed session and issued a verbal 
ruling denying the petition for review, adopting the administrative law judges' initial order, and 



3 
 

directing Commission staff to re-engage in the licensing process with Numerica. (Note: In a 
subsequent written final order, the Commissioner’s affirmed their verbal ruling and directed staff 
to continue with the licensing process.) Legal and Legislative Manager (LLM) Considine 
informed commissioners that the decision would likely involve rule-making. Commissioner 
Patterson asked if staff could work with NCU to fast track the rules process. LLM Considine 
said staff can review the Commission’s options and discuss possible rule-making options later in 
the meeting.  He also indicated that staff will work with NCU and bring options to the February 
commission meeting.  
 
Tab 3 
Presentation-Seattle Jr. Hockey 
Special Agent (SA) Greg Allen presented the materials for this tab.  SA Allen briefed the 
commissioners on Seattle Jr. Hockey Association’s (SJHA) program review. He introduced Ric 
Newgard. Mr. Newgard has worked for SJHA for 41 years. He will be retiring soon and Mr. 
Mike Murphy will be taking over. During 2017, SJHA expended over $886,875 for program 
services and served 1,106 youth participants in its hockey programs. The organization also 
provides scholarships that make it possible for under-privileged youth in the greater Seattle area 
to participate in youth hockey programs. During SA Allen’s review of SJHA, numerous steps 
were taken to ensure it is functioning in accordance with its bylaws and continues to meet the 
definition of a charitable or nonprofit organization under the RCW. This was done, in part, by 
reviewing: board meeting minutes, program services, financial statements, internal controls and 
payroll. SA Allen verified that SJHA’s programs exist and are being supported, and that SJHA 
made significant progress towards its stated purpose.  Based on his review, SA Allen determined 
SJHA was in compliance with all WACs and RCWs during its fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 
and is suitable for continued licensure. 
 
Tab 4 
Presentation-G2E 
Acting Lab Administrator Jamie Aldridge, Special Agent in Charge Cathy Harvey and 
Legal and Legislative Manager Brian Considine provided a presentation about their 
experiences at the 2018 Global Gaming Expo (G2E). G2E is the preeminent show for the 
gaming-entertainment industry. More than 26,000 people and 450 exhibitors attended the show 
from Oct. 8 -11, 2018 at the Sands Expo in Las Vegas. The Gambling Commission staff and 
commissioners attended keynote speeches, educational sessions and stakeholder meetings, and 
also visited the exhibit hall.  Commissioners were joined at the show by staff from: 
administration, IT, TGU, licensing, legal & records and the EGL.  Educational sessions and 
keynotes included: 

*Mobile Gaming: The Next Big Thing for Indian Gaming 
*Changing the Game: The Legal and Regulatory Impacts of a PASPA Repeal 
*The Challenges of Being a Sports Betting Operator in the U.S. 
*How States and Tribes are preparing for Legal Sports Betting 
*Sports Betting: The Path Forward for Indian Country 
*Indian Gaming in 2018: Legislative and Policy Issues in the U.S. 
*How Sports Betting Works in a Regulated Market 
 



4 
 

Also included was a tour of the South Point Las Vegas sports book.  Chair Sizemore said 
“Everybody works really hard, so, I definitely appreciate how well and how well-informed we 
can become as commissioners based on the effort and the work that goes on at that and other 
conferences.” Commissioner Stearns said that the Gambling Commission is held in high regard 
in the industry and that the work that the staff does at G2E is wonderful.  
 
Tab 5 
Defaults 
Staff Attorney Haylee Mills presented the default materials. She also announced that the 
January commission meeting would be her last as staff attorney. She thanked the commission for 
giving her the opportunity to work at the Gambling Commission. 
 
Roeun Chan, CR 2018-01094, Public Card Room Employee Revocation.  
Chair Sizemore asked if Roeun Chan was in the audience. He was not present.   

Commissioner Patterson moved to revoke the public card room employee license from Roeun 
Chan. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0 
Commissioner Levy was not present for the vote. 
 
Gonzo’s LLC/dba Gonzo’s, CR 2018-00871 Punchboard/Pull-Tab revocation.   
Chair Sizemore asked if a representative from Gonzo’s was in the audience. Nobody was 
present.   

Commissioner Stearns moved to revoke the punchboard/pull-tab license for Gonzo’s.  
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion.  
The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Chang S. Kim, Class III Employee Certification revocation, CR 2018-01376.  
Chair Sizemore asked if Chang S. Kim was in the audience. He was not present.   

Commissioner Patterson moved to revoke the Class III employee certification from Chang S. 
Kim. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Lia B. Vanderpol, Public Card Room Employee certification revocation, CR 2018-00821. 
Chair Sizemore asked if Lia B. Vanderpol was in the audience. She was not present. 
 
Commissioner Stearns moved to revoke public card room license from Lia B. Vanderpol.  
Commissioner Levy seconded the motion.  
The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Chair Sizemore wished Haylee Mills good luck at her new position.  
 
Tab 6 
Petition for Rule Change: Trade Shows 

https://www.facebook.com/pages/southpointlas-vegas/220705477950781?__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARCC6NbygBj-1dj6j6nvdVuXo7lTMtcQNT0R3Qlw0LM3G4LHOzoPvkWGqG0bYfhH8goCQrC1z23WvFWNZ_B8Ci0lUQxg6JxYM9721WjO4_e3UlNk1mwxU-CNQ3xOhVVKeHpL0xkuAEg_GQPOA90ZZan7YeAMC97EXZrQjhwHzSLVJ2E-Hv22YrPlohTEMX4zoYdhxvg4tEfY1NoYciePBGtC0lJnxnx_2i4i2hVaq07AxnGMI64-BZ33-81hjG9kz-atY9KBCCAYq2cthUW-jf5PU-nfaFmKWyVwm7-0LIke8vJKeUH7RUTq2fJOrzyN9S3p0C26dXB4h6fo4y7F79rR6jbDMGY93SXKoWBz7S2xP8vy0PTT&__xts__%5B1%5D=68.ARCAgNGP3ig0AbFHw-tHc1ImH8A5SB_2JIJkECDNZaJGIbFNMj2JJuNsB01-VHPw_zW-o2Qfc8cx1sqDKkZV401C1O3pzKMLKwqLSgBi5vR4EB1MSSLbBqnxrzQGLVr0mHe69X7DHGZpQei6pjhpY5EfGkd-7g5eUpUqiwGpDIAH7UyyqzrM5kJQcIi3CGlr2oC6M9ppH3PhF22CeFRC8-rN9ZyHlAxCNkveSteuPmto-A8S6iWzYRLYisZ6BKTILvYnpvdryFtbZ3_AA7YwanN7Dv1BK-pyb0jEPJlbfeFvprnOscpGOlYO_xOrzUgVhc6SXZrmnpfpuTPV7hAQqxE&__tn__=K-R&eid=ARCoBjW3ppZV5yRKGWF6z-VKIhF2oWNQ-geJeEPnRoinxCw46_jKrE0FNciM8o6ak35m6d11BTFYFVot&fref=mentions


5 
 

Legal and Legislative Manager Brian Considine presented the materials for this tab. At this 
time Director Trujillo introduced the new rules coordinator, Ashlie Laydon. Ms. Laydon comes 
to the Gambling Commission for a love of rules and rule-making.  
Commissioners voted unanimously to initiate rule-making regarding trade shows. The staff 
petition for rule change seeks to clarify requirements for trade shows, including transportation 
and storage of gambling equipment. 
 
Chair Sizemore asked for public comment. There was no public comment.   
 
Commissioner Stearns moved to initiate rule-making on trade shows as presented by staff.  
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0 
 
Numerica Credit Union decision and possible raffle rule-making, NCU case resumes. 
 
Legal and Legislative Manager (LLM) Brian Considine offered that he could discuss possible 
rule-making related to the Commissioners earlier decision to grant Numerica Credit Union a 
gambling license.  Chair Sizemore asked to get Ms. Shelly Ripley back on the phone to finish 
the conversation regarding rule-making, in response to the commissioners’ ruling on NCU’s 
ability to receive a raffle license. LLM Considine informed the Commissioners that they should 
continue any rule-making discussion related to credit union and the agency’s raffle rules to the 
Commission’s February meeting because this topic was not on their agenda for this meeting.  
LLM Considine informed the Commissioners that staff can bring a summary sheet, much like 
the sheet provided on the trade show rules, to the February commission meeting to bring this 
issue before them for further discussion.  Ms. Ripley asked for clarification regarding the 
application that NCU filled out originally. Chair Sizemore announced that the orders would be 
forthcoming and would be addressed at the February commission meeting.  
 
Tab 7 
2019 Legislative Update 
Legal and Legislative Manager (LLM) Brian Considine presented the material for this tab.  

LLM Considine went over the process for how the Gambling Commission will bring legislative 
decisions forward for the Commission’s consideration. He asked the commissioners if anyone 
opposed the process; no one objected. LLM Considine highlighted the bills that the Gambling 
Commission will be watching closely.  LLM Considine will schedule meetings with senators 
and representatives in the next couple weeks. He announced that the House Commerce and 
Gaming Committee added a few new members. LLM Considine is expecting our self-exclusion 
bill to be filed early the following week.  The prime sponsor for the House will be Representative 
Kloba and the prime sponsor for the Senate is Senator Conway. Director Trujillo asked the 
commissioners to consider taking a formal position that the Gambling Commission should be the 
primary regulator of Sports Betting. The commissioners voted unanimously to take the position 
that the Washington State Gambling Commission should be the primary regulatory agency 
if/when sports betting is authorized by the Legislature.  
 
Chair Sizemore asked for public comment. There was no public comment. 

https://www.facebook.com/hashtag/sportsbetting?source=feed_text&epa=HASHTAG&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARCAgNGP3ig0AbFHw-tHc1ImH8A5SB_2JIJkECDNZaJGIbFNMj2JJuNsB01-VHPw_zW-o2Qfc8cx1sqDKkZV401C1O3pzKMLKwqLSgBi5vR4EB1MSSLbBqnxrzQGLVr0mHe69X7DHGZpQei6pjhpY5EfGkd-7g5eUpUqiwGpDIAH7UyyqzrM5kJQcIi3CGlr2oC6M9ppH3PhF22CeFRC8-rN9ZyHlAxCNkveSteuPmto-A8S6iWzYRLYisZ6BKTILvYnpvdryFtbZ3_AA7YwanN7Dv1BK-pyb0jEPJlbfeFvprnOscpGOlYO_xOrzUgVhc6SXZrmnpfpuTPV7hAQqxE&__tn__=%2ANK-R


6 
 

 
Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comment 
Chair Sizemore called for any further comment.  
 
Maureen Greeley, Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling, announced that the council 
supports and applauds the great efforts that have been made by the Commission to move 
problem gambling issues forward. She believes that the self-exclusion bill has the potential to be 
the most impactful state legislation regarding problem gambling since state funding for treatment 
in 2005. She also said “the importance of that, and the scope and the processes and the 
requirements that need to follow the initial bill are crucially important to our field and to the 
individuals and families impacted in the state of Washington as well as the industry and what 
impacts will happen there at every level. The Task Force Bill, she stated, she would like to on 
behalf of our council and our board to say, we would very much like to be a part of helping to 
craft whatever language moves forward in a very short period of time, as well as being a key 
player in that task force moving forward. Just as you are the leader in the regulatory field, we 
believe our council is the leader in the field of problem gambling programs and services, and we 
would like to be a voice at that table.” 
 
Roxane Waldron, program manager for the State of Washington Healthcare Authority, 
introduced herself to the Commission as the person who filled Ann Gray’s vacancy. 
Commissioner Patterson encouraged Ms. Waldron to have coffee with Ms. Gray to learn what 
great ideas she had.  
 
There was no further comment. Chair Sizemore reminded the audience that the next 
commission meeting will be Feb. 14, 2019 at the Hampton Inn and Suites in Olympia.   
 
The commission meeting adjourned at 3:45 p.m. 
 



























































 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  
  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Representative Derek Stanford 
   Christopher Stearns    Representative Brandon Vick 
   Ed Troyer      
   Alicia Levy 
      
FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  
   Tyson Wilson, Special Agent 
 
SUBJECT:  Sports Gambling Monthly Update – February 2019 
 
This memo continues my sports gambling updates submitted to you since June 2018. Below is an 
updated sports gambling summary for our February 14, 2019 Commission Meeting:   

Federal 

On January 14, 2019 the Department of Justice released an opinion regarding the interpretation 
of the Wire Act of 1961, applying its prohibitions to all online wagering, not just sports betting.  
This decision reverses their own opinion from 2011.  The opinion does not have the effect of 
law, but is guidance on how the federal government will now likely enforce the Wire Act.   

Since 2011, a number of states have legalized online casino, poker, and lotteries. This likely 
creates uncertainty for states like New Jersey, Nevada, Pennsylvania and state lotteries that offer 
their products online and possibly interstate.  It is expected that this opinion will be tested in 
federal courts.  However, this opinion does not change how states and the federal government 
have viewed sports gambling under the Wire Act. 

Sports Leagues 

Professional sports leagues continue to lobby state legislators for integrity or royalty fees and 
control over the sharing of their statistics and data.  Integrity/royalty fees and data rights have 
been included, or discussed to be include, in bills filed recently in New York, Missouri, and 
Massachusetts, and Michigan. 

Additionally, NCAA president Mark Emmert recently told the Associated Press that sports 
gambling “is going to have a dramatic impact on everything we do in college sports [and is] 
going to threaten the integrity of college sports in many ways.”  Mr. Emmert did not indicate 
what the NCAA should do to protect its athletic programs. 

 

 



Sports Gambling Monthly Update to Commissioners 
February 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
States 

Delaware, Mississippi, New Jersey, Nevada, West Virginia, Rhode Island and Pennsylvania 
currently offer varying opportunities for legal sports gambling within their state casinos and/or 
horse racetracks.  Six of those states (Rhode Island was not operating yet) combined for just 
under $1 billion in handle in November of last year. 

New York and Connecticut have partial laws in place pending further action.  Arkansas and 
Washington D.C. have recently legalized sports betting as well, but it could take several months 
for operations to begin in these states.  In New Mexico, a tribal group is offering sports betting 
under an existing Class III gaming compact. 

Twenty states have introduced legislation to authorize sports betting including Arizona, 
Montana, North Dakota, and South Dakota.   

Here is an update for the states where sports gambling is currently legal:  
 

Delaware – Sports gambling started in the state on June 5, 2018.  The state Lottery is 
the primary regulator.  Sports gambling is only offered at three land-based racetracks 
and casinos, and these are joint operations by the state through a vendor.  The 
allocation of net revenues are 12.5% to the vendors (Scientific Games, William Hill, 
and StadiumTech) and the remaining 87.5% of net revenues are allocated 50% to the 
state, 40% to the racetrack/casinos, and 10% to horse racing purses.  In November and 
December, there was approximately $32.4 million wagered resulting in $3.2 million in 
revenues. 

 
New Jersey – Sports gambling started in the state on June 14, 2018.  The Casino 
Control Commission is the primary licensing authority and Attorney General’s 
Division of Gaming Enforcement (DGE) is the primary regulator.  There are currently 
9 land-based (previous memos had an error stating 12) and 8 online operators offering 
sports gambling. Its land-based gross revenues are taxed at 9.75% and mobile and 
online revenues are taxed at 13%.  In December, approximately $319 million was 
wagered resulting in $20.8 million in gross revenue.  This resulted in $2.4 million in 
tax revenue. 
 
Mississippi – Sports gambling started in the state on August 1, 2018.  The Gaming 
Commission is the primary regulator, and gross revenues are taxed at 12%. 23 of the 
28 state casinos currently offered sports gambling. In December, approximately $41.7 
million was wagered with operators retaining $6.1 million in gross revenues.  This 
resulted in $740,906 in tax revenue. 
 
West Virginia – Sports gambling started in the state on September 1, 2018.  The state 
Lottery is the primary regulator for that state’s five licensed race racetrack/casinos, 
and gross revenues are taxed at 10%.  In November, approximately $13.3 million was 
wagered with operators retaining $1.33 million in gross revenues.  This resulted in 
$133,351 in tax revenue. 

 



Sports Gambling Monthly Update to Commissioners 
February 2019 
Page 3 
 
 

Rhode Island – Sports gambling started in the state on November 26, 2018.  The state 
lottery operates sports betting at two state-run operations using IGT and William Hill 
as vendors.  The allocation of net revenues are 51% to the state; 32% to the Vendor 
(IGT); and 17% to the casino. In November and December, approximately $13.7 
million was wagered resulting in approximately $1 million in gross revenue.   
 
In January, the President of the Senate announced that he was submitting a bill 
authorizing mobile sports betting as well. 
 
Pennsylvania – Sports gambling started in the state in December 2018. The state 
gaming control board is the primary regulator. Currently, there are 3 retail locations 
with additional locations expected to open in January. Pennsylvania has a $10 million 
sports wagering licensing fee and gross revenue are taxed at 36%. In December, there 
was approximately $16.1 million in wagers for approximately $2 million in gross 
revenues, and $722,000 in state tax revenue. 
 
Nevada – The Gaming Control Board is the primary regulator. Gross revenues are 
taxed at 6.75% and sports gambling can occur at the state’s approximately 190 
licensed locations and through mobile and internet platforms. Over $5 billion was 
wagered on sports bets in Nevada in 2018.  This resulted in a gaming win of over 
$300 million, up 20.98% over 2017.  That state benefited with over $20 million in 
taxes. 

 

Tribal Governments 

The Oneida Indian Nation announced that it would partner with Caesars to operate legal sports 
betting inside three New York casinos.  This is subject to NIGC approval and New York issuing 
sports betting regulations. 

Currently, there are two Tribes outside of Nevada offering sports gambling at their operations–
Choctaw in Mississippi and Pueblo of Santa Ana in New Mexico. 

Commercial Operators 

Prairie Meadows Racetrack & Casino, in Iowa, announced a partnership with sports betting 
operator William Hill in January.  The partnership is pending legislative passage of a sports 
betting bill.  There is optimism that a sports betting bill passes in 2019. 

Caesars announced that they are now an official partner to the NFL, the first such deal for the 
league. The alliance doesn’t include a sports betting component right now, though that almost 
certainly was an ingredient in the discussions. 

MGM previously entered into partnerships with three other US sports leagues, NBA, NHL and 
MLB, but the NFL chose a different path 
 
 
 

https://www.legalsportsreport.com/27336/nfl-partners-with-caesars-entertainment/
https://www.thelines.com/caesars-nfl-sports-bettors/


 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
February 4, 2019 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Brenda M. Woodward, CR 2018-01411 
  Final Order – February 14, 2019 Commission Meeting 
 
Ms. Brenda M. Woodward has a conditional certification authorizing Class III Employee activity 
at the Legends Casino in Toppenish, Washington.  Her certification expires on May 17, 2019.   
 
On April 16, 2018, Yakama Nation Gaming Commission submitted an application to the 
Washington State Gambling Commission for Class III certification for Ms. Woodward to work at 
Legends Casino. Ms. Woodward did not meet the standard criteria for certification due to her 
criminal history and was placed on a conditional certification signed by Ms. Woodward on May 
9, 2018. In the conditional certification agreement, Ms. Woodward agreed that she would not be 
arrested or charged with violating law, or for any crime, whether by tribal police or any other law 
enforcement agency. In June 2018, Ms. Woodward violated her conditional certification 
agreement she as charged with committing criminal violations.  
 
Subsequently, the Yakama Nation Gaming Commission filed a Petition to Uphold Summary 
Suspension and Motion to Revoke and we received notification from the Yakama Nation Gaming 
Commission that Ms. Woodward’s tribal gaming license was revoked on August 22, 2018.  
 
Director Trujillo issued Ms. Woodward a Notice of Administrative Charges on November 28, 
2018, by regular and certified mail to her last known address on file. The certified mail was 
returned on December 26, 2018. Pursuant to WAC 230-17-010, a response was required to be 
received by the Commission by December 21, 2018. The Commission received an untimely 
request for hearing on December 24, 2018—after the deadline for response.  
 
Ms. Woodward’s failure to respond to the charges or timely request a hearing is a waiver of Ms. 
Woodward’s right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2018-01411. You may take final action against her 
gambling certification.  Based on her conduct, Ms. Woodward cannot show by clear and 
convincing evidence that she is qualified to keep her conditional certification.  Therefore, staff 
recommends that the Commission sign the proposed final order and revoke Brenda M. 
Woodward’s Conditional Class III Employee certification, Number 69-44497. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  BRENDA M. WOODWARD 
NO. 2018-01411 
 

1  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

 
In the Matter of: 
 
 
BRENDA M. WOODWARD, 
License No. 69-44497 
                    
 

 
Class III Employee. 

NO.  CR 2018-01411 
            
 
FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 

 This matter having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission 

(Commission) on February 14, 2019, the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order: 

I.  FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission issued a Conditional Class III 

certification to Brenda M. Woodward Certification No.: 69-44497, authorizing Class III 

Employee activity at the Legends Casino in Toppenish, Washington. 

2. This conditional certification, which expires on May 17, 2019, was issued subject 

to Ms. Woodward’s compliance with state gambling laws and Commission rules, in accordance 

with the Yakama Nation-State Gaming Compact.  

3. On April 16, 2018, Yakama Nation Gaming Commission submitted an 

application to the Washington State Gambling Commission for Class III certification for Ms. 

Woodward to work at Legends Casino. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  BRENDA M. WOODWARD 
NO. 2018-01411 
 

2  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

4. Ms. Woodward did not meet the standard criteria for certification due to her 

criminal history, and was placed on a conditional certification, signed by Ms. Woodward on May 

9, 2018. 

5. In the conditional certification agreement, Ms. Woodward agreed that she would 

not be arrested or charged with violating laws, or for any crime, whether by tribal police or any 

other law enforcement agency.  

6. On June 25, 2018, Ms. Woodward violated her conditional certification 

agreement when she was charged with Theft Third Degree, a gross misdemeanor, and Driving 

While License Suspended Third Degree, a misdemeanor, in City of Union Gap- Yakima County 

District Court Case Nos. 8Z0655333 and 8Z0654332. 

7. On July 24, 2018, the Yakama Nation Gaming Commission filed a Petition to 

Uphold Summary Suspension and Motion to Revoke.  

8. On September 10, 2018, the Gambling Commission received notification from 

Yakama Nation Gaming Commission that on August 22, 2018, Ms. Woodward’s tribal gaming 

license was revoked.  

9. On October 9, 2018, Ms. Woodward was charged with Shoplifting, a gross 

misdemeanor, in Yakima Municipal Court Case No. PA18-0222. 

10. Ms. Woodward’s criminal matters are still pending.  

11. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on November 28, 2018 

alleging that Ms. Woodward’s actions constituted bases for revocation in RCW 9.46.075 and 

WAC 230-03-085.  Further, that she could not show by clear and convincing evidence that she 

was qualified for licensure as required by RCW 9.46.153(1), and that her actions warranted 

revocation of her Conditional Class III certification pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1), (8), and (9), 

WAC 230-03-085(1), (3), and (9)(a), and in accordance with Section V.C. (1) and (3) of the 

Yakama Nation-State Gaming Compact. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  BRENDA M. WOODWARD 
NO. 2018-01411 
 

3  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

12. Ms. Woodward was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on November 

28, 2018 to the last address the Gambling Commission had on file. The certified mail was 

returned on December 26, 2018. 

13. Pursuant to WAC 230-17-010, a response was required to be received by the 

Commission by December 21, 2018. The Commission received an untimely request for hearing 

on December 24, 2018 after the deadline for response.  

II.  CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. Ms. Woodward received proper notice of the November 28, 2018 charges via 

regular and certified mail on November 28, 2018 pursuant to RCW 34.05.434, RCW 34.05.431, 

and WAC 10-08-130.   

2. The Commission can take final action against Ms. Woodward’s Conditional 

Class III certification under Case Number CR 2018-01411 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 

34.05.440(1), RCW 34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085. 

3. Ms. Woodward’s Conditional Class III certification should be revoked under 

Case Number CR 2018-01411 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 9.46.153(1), RCW 

34.05.440(1), RCW 34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085. 

 
  



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  BRENDA M. WOODWARD 
NO. 2018-01411 
 

4  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

ORDER 

 This matter having come before the Commission at its February 14, 2019, Commission 

meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, been given the chance to review the 

administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore: 

 It is hereby ORDERED that Brenda M. Woodward’s Conditional Class III certification, 

Number 69-44497, is REVOKED.  

 

DATED this 14th day of February, 2019. 
 
 
____________________________________ _________________________________ 
BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair 
 
 
____________________________________  __________________________________  
CHRISTOPHER STEARNS    ED TROYER 
 
 
____________________________________ 
ALICIA LEVY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  BRENDA M. WOODWARD 
NO. 2018-01411 
 

5  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

NOTICE 

 

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a 

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no 

later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed.  Any motion for 

reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for 

reconsideration.  

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this 

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final 

order.  Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days 

after the date this final order is mailed. 

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by 

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order.  A petition 

for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the 

Commission and the Office of the Attorney General. 

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United 

States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035. 

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to: 
Washington State Gambling Commission                     Gregory J. Rosen 
Legal and Records Division                                           Attorney General’s Office 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA                                 1135 Washington St. SE  
P.O. Box 42400                                                              P.O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-2400                                             Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  BRENDA M. WOODWARD 
NO. 2018-01411 
 

6  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties 

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following: 
 
 
BRENDA M. WOODWARD 
5462 MCDONALD ROAD 
WAPATO WA  98951 

 EXECUTED this ___ day of February, 2019, at Lacey, Washington. 
 
 
             
      Ashlie Laydon 
      Rules Coordinator 
 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
February 4, 2019 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Rodney M. Madison, CR 2018-01196 
  Final Order – February 14, 2019 Commission Meeting 
 
Mr. Rodney M. Madison has a gambling license authorizing Public Card Room Employee activity 
at Iron Horse Casino in Auburn, Washington.  His license expires on June 12, 2019.   
 
On August 6, 2018, Mr. Madison was working as security officer at Iron Horse Casino. On that 
date, a patron of Iron Horse Casino inadvertently forgot his banking card at the bar. The bartender 
gave the banking card to Mr. Madison so he could secure it in the security station. Surveillance 
video shows that instead of securing the patron’s banking card, Mr. Madison took the card to an 
ATM in the card room. Mr. Madison made two attempts to withdraw at least $603.50 from the 
ATM. In each instance, when the withdrawal was denied, Mr. Madison looked at the card and the 
receipt, comparing the two. On August 9, 2018, Mr. Madison admitted attempting to use the card 
when questioned about the incident by our special agent, but he claimed he mistakenly thought it 
was his own. Mr. Madison’s employment was terminated on August 10, 2018. 
 
Director Trujillo issued Mr. Madison a Notice of Administrative Charges on December 21, 2018, 
by regular and certified mail to his last known address on file. The certified mail was returned on 
January 4, 2019. The regular mail was returned on January 8, 2019. As of the date of this memo, 
the Commission has not received any response from Mr. Madison. 
 
Mr. Madison’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Mr. Madison’s 
right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2018-01196. You may take final action against his gambling 
license. Based on his conduct, Mr. Madison cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that he 
is qualified to keep his gambling license. Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission sign 
the proposed final order and revoke Rodney M. Madison’s Public Card Room Employee license, 
Number 68-23786. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  RODNEY M. MADISON 
NO. 2018-01196 
 

1  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

 
In the Matter of: 
 
 
RODNEY M. MADISON, 
License No. 68-23786, 
                    
 

 
Licensee. 

NO.  CR 2018-01196 
            
 
FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 

 This matter having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission 

(Commission) on February 14, 2019, the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order: 

I.  FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission issued Rodney M. Madison 

License No.: 68-23786, authorizing Public Card Room activity at Iron Horse Casino in Auburn, 

Washington. 

2. This license, which expires on June 12, 2019, was issued subject to Mr. 

Madison’s compliance with state gambling laws and Commission rules.  

3. On August 6, 2018, Mr. Madison was working as a security officer at Iron Horse 

Casino.  

4. On the above date, a patron of Iron Horse Casino inadvertently forgot his banking 

card at the bar when he left.  

5. The bartender gave the banking card to Mr. Madison so he could secure it in the 

security station. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  RODNEY M. MADISON 
NO. 2018-01196 
 

2  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

6. Surveillance video shows that instead of securing the patron’s banking card, Mr. 

Madison took the card to an ATM in the card room. 

7. Mr. Madison made two attempts to withdraw at least $603.50 ($600.00 plus a 

$3.50 ATM fee) from the ATM.  

8. In each instance, when the withdrawal was denied, Mr. Madison looked at the 

card and the receipt, comparing the two.  

9. On August 9, 2018, when questioned about the incident by a Gambling 

Commission special agent, Mr. Madison admitted attempting to use the card, but claimed he 

mistakenly thought it was his own.  

10. Mr. Madison’s employment was terminated on August 10, 2018. 

11. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on December 18, 2018 

alleging that Mr. Madison’s actions constituted a violation of WAC 230-06-085(1). Further, that 

he could not show by clear and convincing evidence that he was qualified for licensure as 

required by RCW 9.46.153(1), and that his actions warranted revocation of his license pursuant 

to RCW 9.46.075(1) and (8), and WAC 230-03-085(1), (2), (3), and (9)(a). 

12. Mr. Madison was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on December 21, 

2018 to the last address the Gambling Commission had on file.  The certified mail was returned 

on January 4, 2019.  The regular mail was returned on January 8, 2019. 

13. To date, the Commission has received no communication from Mr. Madison.  

II.  CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. Mr. Madison received proper notice of the December 18, 2018 charges via regular 

and certified mail on December 21, 2018 pursuant to RCW 34.05.434, RCW 34.05.431, and 

WAC 10-08-130.   

2. The Commission can take final action against Mr. Madison’s gambling license 

under Case Number CR 2018-01196 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 

34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  RODNEY M. MADISON 
NO. 2018-01196 
 

3  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

3. Mr. Madison’s license should be revoked under Case Number CR 2018-01196 

pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 9.46.153(1), RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 34.05.461, and WAC 

230-03-085. 

ORDER 

 This matter having come before the Commission at its February 14, 2019, Commission 

meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, been given the chance to review the 

administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore: 

 It is hereby ORDERED that Rodney M. Madison’s gambling license, Number 68-23786, 

is REVOKED.  

 

DATED this 14th day of February, 2019. 
 
 
____________________________________ _________________________________ 
BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair 
 
 
____________________________________  __________________________________  
CHRISTOPHER STEARNS    ED TROYER 
 
 
____________________________________ 
ALICIA LEVY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  RODNEY M. MADISON 
NO. 2018-01196 
 

4  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

NOTICE 
 

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a 

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no 

later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed.  Any motion for 

reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for 

reconsideration.  

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this 

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final 

order.  Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days 

after the date this final order is mailed. 

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by 

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order.  A petition 

for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the 

Commission and the Office of the Attorney General. 

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United 

States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035. 

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to: 

Washington State Gambling Commission                     Gregory J. Rosen 
Legal and Records Division                                           Attorney General’s Office 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA                                 1135 Washington St. SE  
P.O. Box 42400                                                              P.O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-2400                                             Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  RODNEY M. MADISON 
NO. 2018-01196 
 

5  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties 

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following: 
 
 
RODNEY MADISON 
1900 SW CAMPUS DR APT 26-202 
FEDERAL WAY, WA  98023 

 EXECUTED this ___ day of February, 2019, at Lacey, Washington. 
 
 
             
      Ashlie Laydon 
      Rules Coordinator 
 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
February 4, 2019 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Hung Le, CR 2018-00604 
  Final Order – February 14, 2019 Commission Meeting 
 
Mr. Hung Le has a gambling license authorizing Public Card Room Employee activity at Chips 
Casino in Lakewood, Washington.  His license expires on March 12, 2019.   
 
On April 14, 2018, while working as a Blackjack dealer at Chips Casino, Mr. Le assisted three 
players to cheat. On the above date, Mr. Le exposed his hole card, then turned it face down again, 
and allowed players to withdraw double down wagers after seeing the card. Mr. Le manipulated 
the deck of cards during the cut so that he could see the card a player would receive, then told the 
player what the card was, and encouraged her to increase her bonus wager. Upon a request for a 
hit by a player, Mr. Le looked at the card, told the player what it was, and allowed him the option 
to not take the hit. Mr. Le committed multiple procedural errors that required a flood supervisor’s 
correction, but failed to report the errors to the floor supervisor, and instead chose to correct some 
of the irregularities himself. Following the incident, Mr. Le’s employment with Chips Casino was 
terminated. 
 
Director Trujillo issued Mr. Le a Notice of Administrative Charges on November 19, 2018, by 
regular and certified mail to his last known address on file. Neither the regular nor certified mail 
was returned.  As of the date of this memo, the Commission has not received any response from 
Mr. Le. 
 
Mr. Le’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Mr. Le’s right to a 
hearing in Case No. CR 2018-00604. You may take final action against his gambling license.  
Based on his conduct, Mr. Le cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that he is qualified 
to keep his gambling license. Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission sign the proposed 
final order and revoke Hung Le’s Public Card Room Employee license, Number 68-32862. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  HUNG LE 
NO. 2018-00604 
 

1  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

 
In the Matter of: 
 
 
HUNG M. LE, 
License No. 68-32862, 
                    
 

 
Licensee. 

NO.  CR 2018-00604 
            
 
FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 

 This matter having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission 

(Commission) on February 14, 2019, the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order: 

I.  FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission issued Hung Le License No.: 68-

32862, authorizing Public Card Room activity at Chips Casino in Lakewood, Washington. 

2. This license, which expires on March 12, 2019, was issued subject to Mr. Le’s 

compliance with state gambling laws and Commission rules.  

3. On April 14, 2018, while working as a Blackjack dealer at Chips Casino, Mr. Le 

assisted three players to cheat.   

4. On the above date, Mr. Le exposed his hole card, then turned it face down again, 

and allowed players to withdraw double down wagers after seeing the card.  

5. Mr. Le manipulated the deck of cards during the cut so that he could see the card 

a player would receive, then told the player what the card was, and encouraged her to increase 

her bonus wager. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  HUNG LE 
NO. 2018-00604 
 

2  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

6.  Upon a request for a hit by a player, Mr. Le looked at the card, told the player 

what it was, and allowed him the option to not take the hit. 

7. Mr. Le exposed his hole card, then allowed a player to hit and take another card. 

8. As outlined above, Mr. Le committed multiple procedural errors that required a 

floor supervisor’s correction, but failed to report the errors to the floor supervisor, and instead 

chose to correct some of the irregularities himself. 

9. Based on his actions, Mr. Le’s employment at Chips Casino was terminated. 

10. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on November 16, 2018 

alleging that Mr. Le’s actions constituted violations of RCW 9.46.1961 and RCW 9A.56.050.  

Further, that he could not show by clear and convincing evidence that he was qualified for 

licensure as required by RCW 9.46.153(1), and that his actions warranted revocation of his 

license pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1) and (8), and WAC 230-03-085(1) and (9). 

11. Mr. Le was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on November 19, 2018 

to the last address the Gambling Commission had on file.  Neither the regular nor the certified 

mail was returned.   

12. To date, the Commission has received no communication from Mr. Le.  

II.  CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. Mr. Hung Le received proper notice of the November 16, 2018 charges via 

regular and certified mail on November 19, 2018 pursuant to RCW 34.05.434, RCW 34.05.431, 

and WAC 10-08-130.   

2. The Commission can take final action against Mr. Le’s gambling license under 

Case Number CR 2018-00604 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 34.05.461, 

and WAC 230-03-085. 

3. Mr. Le’s license should be revoked under Case Number CR 2018-00604 pursuant 

to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 9.46.190(1), RCW 9.46.185, RCW 9.46.153(1), RCW 34.05.440(1), 

RCW 34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  HUNG LE 
NO. 2018-00604 
 

3  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

ORDER 

 This matter having come before the Commission at its February 14, 2019, Commission 

meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, been given the chance to review the 

administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore: 

 It is hereby ORDERED that Hung Le’s gambling license, Number 68-32862, is 

REVOKED.  

 

DATED this 14th day of February, 2019. 
 
 
____________________________________ _________________________________ 
BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair 
 
 
____________________________________  __________________________________  
CHRISTOPHER STEARNS    ED TROYER 
 
 
____________________________________ 
ALICIA LEVY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  HUNG LE 
NO. 2018-00604 
 

4  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

NOTICE 
 

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a 

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no 

later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed.  Any motion for 

reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for 

reconsideration.  

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this 

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final 

order.  Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days 

after the date this final order is mailed. 

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by 

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order.  A petition 

for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the 

Commission and the Office of the Attorney General. 

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United 

States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035. 

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to: 

Washington State Gambling Commission                     Gregory J. Rosen 
Legal and Records Division                                           Attorney General’s Office 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA                                 1135 Washington St. SE  
P.O. Box 42400                                                              P.O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-2400                                             Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  HUNG LE 
NO. 2018-00604 
 

5  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties 

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following: 
 
 
HUNG LE 
1201 E 42ND ST 
TACOMA, WA  98404 

 EXECUTED this ___ day of February, 2019, at Lacey, Washington. 
 
 
             
      Ashlie Laydon 
      Rules Coordinator 
 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
February 4, 2019 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Carlos Rodriguez Bravo, CR 2018-01620 
  Final Order – February 14, 2019 Commission Meeting 
 
Mr. Carlos Rodriguez Bravo has a gambling license authorizing Public Card Room Employee 
activity at Clearwater Saloon & Casino in East Wenatchee, Washington.  His license expires on 
April 6, 2019.   
 
On April 4, 2018, Mr. Rodriguez Bravo was charged in Chelan County Superior Court Case No. 
18-1-00161 with Violation of No Contact Order- Domestic Violence, a Class C Felony, three 
counts of Violation of No Contact Order- Domestic Violence, gross misdemeanors, and one count 
of Interfering with Domestic Violence Reporting, a gross misdemeanor. On July 11, 2018, Mr. 
Rodriguez Bravo plead guilty to Violation of No Contact Order- Domestic Violence, a Class C 
Felony, and Violation of No Contact Order- Domestic Violence, a gross misdemeanor. Mr. 
Rodriguez Bravo was sentenced to 12 months community custody. Mr. Rodriguez Bravo never 
reported the above listed charges or convictions to the Gambling Commission as required.  
 
Director Trujillo issued Mr. Rodriguez Bravo a Notice of Administrative Charges on November 
28, 2018, by regular and certified mail to his last known address on file. The certified mail was 
returned on December 28, 2018. As of the date of this memo, the Commission has not received 
any response from Mr. Rodriguez Bravo. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez Bravo’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Mr. 
Rodriguez Bravo’s right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2018-01620. You may take final action 
against his gambling license.  Based on his conduct, Mr. Rodriguez Bravo cannot show by clear 
and convincing evidence that he is qualified to keep his gambling license. Therefore, staff 
recommends that the Commission sign the proposed final order and revoke Carlos Rodriguez 
Bravo’s Public Card Room Employee license, Number 68-34137. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  CARLOS RODRIGUEZ BRAVO 
NO. 2018-01620 
 

1  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

 
In the Matter of: 
 
 
CARLOS RODRIGUEZ BRAVO, 
License No. 68-34137, 
                    
 

 
Licensee. 

NO.  CR 2018-01620 
            
 
FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 

 This matter having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission 

(Commission) on February 14, 2019, the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order: 

I.  FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission issued Carlos Rodriguez Bravo 

License No.: 68-34137, authorizing Public Card Room activity at Clearwater Saloon & Casino 

in East Wenatchee, Washington. 

2. This license, which expires on April 6, 2019, was issued subject to Mr. Rodriguez 

Bravo’s compliance with state gambling laws and Commission rules.  

3. On April 4, 2018, Mr. Rodriguez Bravo was charged in Chelan County Superior 

Court Case No. 18-1-00161 with Violation of No Contact Order- Domestic Violence, a Class C 

Felony, three counts of Violation of No Contact Order- Domestic Violence, gross misdemeanors, 

and one count of Interfering with Domestic Violence Reporting, a gross misdemeanor.   



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  CARLOS RODRIGUEZ BRAVO 
NO. 2018-01620 
 

2  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

4. On July 11, 2018, Mr. Rodriguez Bravo plead guilty to Violation of No Contact 

Order- Domestic Violence, a Class C Felony, and Violation of No Contact Order- Domestic 

Violence, a gross misdemeanor. 

5. On July 11, 2018, Mr. Rodriguez Bravo was sentenced to 12 months community 

custody.  

6. Mr. Rodriguez Bravo never reported the above listed charges or convictions to 

the Gambling Commission as required.  

7. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on November 27, 2018 

alleging that Mr. Rodriguez Bravo’s actions constituted a violation of WAC 230-06-085(1). 

Further, that he could not show by clear and convincing evidence that he was qualified for 

licensure as required by RCW 9.46.153(1), and that his actions warranted revocation of his 

license pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1), (4), (7), and (8), and WAC 230-03-085(1), (2), (3), (6), 

(8), and (9)(a) and (b). 

8. Mr. Rodriguez Bravo was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on 

November 28, 2018 to the last address the Gambling Commission had on file.  The certified mail 

was returned on December 28, 2018.   

9. To date, the Commission has received no communication from Mr. Rodriguez 

Bravo.  

II.  CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. Mr. Rodriguez Bravo received proper notice of the November 27, 2018 charges 

via regular and certified mail on November 28, 2018 pursuant to RCW 34.05.434, RCW 

34.05.431, and WAC 10-08-130.   

2. The Commission can take final action against Mr. Rodriguez Bravo’s gambling 

license under Case Number CR 2018-01620 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 34.05.440(1), 

RCW 34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  CARLOS RODRIGUEZ BRAVO 
NO. 2018-01620 
 

3  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

3. Mr. Rodriguez Bravo’s license should be revoked under Case Number CR 2018-

01620 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 9.46.153(1), RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 34.05.461, and 

WAC 230-03-085. 

ORDER 

 This matter having come before the Commission at its February 14, 2019, Commission 

meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, been given the chance to review the 

administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore: 

 It is hereby ORDERED that Carlos Rodriguez Bravo’s gambling license, Number 68-

34137, is REVOKED.  

 

DATED this 14th day of February, 2019. 
 
 
____________________________________ _________________________________ 
BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair 
 
 
____________________________________  __________________________________  
CHRISTOPHER STEARNS    ED TROYER 
 
 
____________________________________ 
ALICIA LEVY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  CARLOS RODRIGUEZ BRAVO 
NO. 2018-01620 
 

4  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

NOTICE 
 

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a 

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no 

later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed.  Any motion for 

reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for 

reconsideration.  

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this 

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final 

order.  Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days 

after the date this final order is mailed. 

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by 

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order.  A petition 

for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the 

Commission and the Office of the Attorney General. 

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United 

States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035. 

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to: 

Washington State Gambling Commission                     Gregory J. Rosen 
Legal and Records Division                                           Attorney General’s Office 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA                                 1135 Washington St. SE  
P.O. Box 42400                                                              P.O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-2400                                             Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  CARLOS RODRIGUEZ BRAVO 
NO. 2018-01620 
 

5  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties 

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following: 
 
 
CARLOS RODRIGUEZ BRAVO 
PO BOX 3247 
WENATCHEE, WA  98807 

 EXECUTED this ___ day of February, 2019, at Lacey, Washington. 
 
 
             
      Ashlie Laydon 
      Rules Coordinator 
 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
February 4, 2019 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Duchess Tavern, CR 2018-01858 
  Final Order – February 14, 2019 Commission Meeting 
 
Duchess Tavern has a gambling license authorizing Punchboard/Pull-Tab activity in the State of 
Washington. The license expires on June 30, 2019, and was issued subject to the Licensee’s, and 
its substantial interest holder’s compliance with state gambling laws and Commission rules at all 
times after receiving its gambling license.   
 
Licensees must submit quarterly license fees and license reports to the Commission for each 
licensed gambling activity beginning with the first quarter of their license year under our new fee 
structure. Quarterly license reports and quarterly license fees were due no later than October 30, 
2018. Duchess Tavern failed to timely submit to the Commission its quarterly license fees and 
quarterly license reports within 30 days following the end of the quarter. Duchess Tavern also 
failed to submit to the Commission its quarterly license fee and quarterly license report during the 
additional 30-day late filing and payment period.  
 
Director Trujillo issued a Notice of Administrative Charges on December 7, 2018 to the Licensee 
by regular and certified mail to the last address the Gambling Commission had on file on December 
7, 2018.  Under Chapter 34.05 RCW, and in accordance with Chapter 9.46 RCW and WAC 230-
17-150, a brief adjudicative proceeding hearing was scheduled for December 19, 2018. Notice of 
this hearing was sent by regular and certified mail on December 7, 2018 to the last address the 
Gambling Commission had on file. Duchess Tavern failed to appear at the hearing nor did they 
request a continuance.   
 
You may take final action against Duchess Tavern’s gambling license due to their failure to appear 
at the scheduled hearing or request a continuance. Staff recommends that the Commission sign the 
proposed final order and suspend Duchess Tavern’s Punchboard/Pull-Tab Activity License, 
Number 05-07397, until they have submitted their outstanding quarterly license report and paid 
their quarterly license fee, including any additional costs associated with the collection of this fee. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  DUCHESS TAVERN 
NO. 2018-01858 
 

1  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

 
In the Matter of: 
 
 
DUCHESS TAVERN, 
License No. 05-07397 
                    

 
 

Licensee. 

NO.  CR 2018-01858 
            
 
FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 

 This matter having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission 

(Commission) on February 14, 2019, the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order: 

I.  FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission issued Licensee Duchess Tavern 

License number: 05-07397, authorizing Punchboard/Pull-Tab activity in the State of 

Washington. 

2. This license, which expires on June 30, 2019, was issued subject to the licensee’s 

substantial interest holder’s compliance with state gambling laws and Commission rules at all 

times after receiving its gambling license.  

3. Licensees must submit quarterly license fees and license reports to the 

Commission for each licensed gambling activity beginning with the first quarter of their license 

year. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  DUCHESS TAVERN 
NO. 2018-01858 
 

2  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

4. Quarterly license reports and quarterly license fees were due no later than October 

30, 2018. 

5. Duchess Tavern failed to timely submit to the Commission its quarterly license 

fees and quarterly license reports within 30 days following the end of the quarter. 

6. Duchess Tavern also failed to submit to the Commission its quarterly license fee 

and quarterly license report during the additional 30-day late filing and payment period.  

7. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on December 7, 2018 

alleging that Duchess Tavern’s actions constituted a violation of WAC 230-05-132(1).  Further, 

that their actions warranted suspension of their license pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1) and WAC 

230-03-085(1) and (5).  

8. Pursuant to WAC 230-05-132(4) and WAC 230-03-085(5), Duchess Tavern’s 

license is suspended until it has submitted its outstanding quarterly licensing report and paid its 

quarterly licensing fee, including any additional costs associated with the collection of this fee.  

9. Licensee was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on December 7, 2018, 

to the last address the Gambling Commission had on file.  Under Chapter 34.05 RCW, and in 

accordance with Chapter 9.46 RCW and WAC 230-17-150, a brief adjudicative proceeding 

hearing was scheduled for December 19, 2018. Notice of this hearing was sent by regular and 

certified mail on December 7, 2018 to the last address the Gambling Commission had on file. 

Duchess Tavern failed to appear the hearing, nor did they request a continuance.  

II.  CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. Licensee received proper notice of the October 26, 2018 charges by regular and 

certified mail on November 8, 2018 pursuant to RCW 34.05.434, RCW 34.05.431, and WAC 

10-08-130.   

2. The Commission can take final action against Licensee’s gambling license under 

Case Number CR 2018-01858 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1), RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 

34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085(1) and (5). 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  DUCHESS TAVERN 
NO. 2018-01858 
 

3  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

3. Duchess Tavern’s license should be suspended under Case Number CR 2018-

01858 until it has submitted its outstanding quarterly licensing report and paid its quarterly 

licensing fee, including any additional costs or late penalties associated with the collection of 

this fee pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-

085. 
  



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  DUCHESS TAVERN 
NO. 2018-01858 
 

4  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

ORDER 

 This matter having come before the Commission at its February 14, 2019, Commission 

meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, been given the chance to review the 

administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore: 

 It is hereby ORDERED that Duchess Tavern’s gambling license, Number 05-07397, is 

SUSPENDED until it has submitted its outstanding quarterly licensing report and paid its 

quarterly licensing fee, including any additional costs or late penalties associated with the 

collection of this fee.  

 

DATED this 14th day of February, 2019. 
 
 
____________________________________ _________________________________ 
BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair 
 
 
____________________________________  __________________________________  
CHRISTOPHER STEARNS    ED TROYER 
 
 
____________________________________ 
ALICIA LEVY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  DUCHESS TAVERN 
NO. 2018-01858 
 

5  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

NOTICE 
 

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a 

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no 

later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed.  Any motion for 

reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for 

reconsideration.  

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this 

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final 

order.  Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days 

after the date this final order is mailed. 

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by 

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order.  A petition 

for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the 

Commission and the Office of the Attorney General. 

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United 

States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035. 

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to: 

Washington State Gambling Commission                     Gregory J. Rosen 
Legal and Records Division                                           Attorney General’s Office 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA                                 1135 Washington St. SE  
P.O. Box 42400                                                              P.O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-2400                                             Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  DUCHESS TAVERN 
NO. 2018-01858 
 

6  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties 

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following: 
 
 
DUCHESS TAVERN 
2827 NE 55th STREET 
SEATTLE, WA  98105 

 EXECUTED this ___ day of February, 2019, at Lacey, Washington. 
 
 
             
      Ashlie Laydon 
      Rules Coordinator 
 



STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION

“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

February 7, 2019 

TO: COMMISSIONERS:  

Bud Sizemore, Chair 

Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 

Ed Troyer 

Alicia Levy 

FROM: Brian J. Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 

Legal and Records Division 

SUBJECT:  Numerica Credit Union, Case No. 2018-00200 
Petition for Reconsideration Materials – February 14, 2019 Commission 

Meeting 

Commission staff has filed a Petition for Reconsideration of the Commission’s Final Order in the 
above-referenced case.  Enclosed in your Commission Meeting packet is the Petition for 
Reconsideration filed by assistant attorney general Chad Standifer, the Applicant’s Response to 
the Petition for Reconsideration filed by the applicant’s attorney, Ms. Ripley.   

Copies of the Administrative Law Judge’s Initial Order and the Commission’s Final Order on 
Petition for Review are also in your packet.  For reference, the complete case record, including 
audio recordings and transcripts of the administrative hearings, was previously provided to you for 
review at our January Commission Meeting. 













03:39:20 p.m. 02—05—2019 I 3 I 15094562726 I
To: Page 3 of 6 2019-02-0600:19:11 (GMT) 15094582728 From: Witherspoon Kelley

4

6

BEFORE THE WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COrvtMISSION
0

10 Docket No. 04-2018-GMI3-00046

In Re: GMB No. CR-2018-0020

12 RESPONSE TO GAMBLING

13
NUMERICA CREDIT UNlO, COMMISSION STAFF’S MOTION FOR

CLARIFICATION OF THE FINAL ORDER
4 Appellant.

IS

16 —

____________

17 A. The Commission should process Numerica’s application under the criteria
set forth in RCW 946M2O9(2)(a).

8

19
The Commission Staff requests clarification as to how they should process Numerica

2c: Cwdit Unions (“Numerica”) application for a raffle gtm3bling license. With all due respect. the

21 Commission Staff is making a matter more complicated than it need be. The Commission

22 affirmed and adopted in its entirety the Administrative Law Judge’s (“ALT) Initial Order as the
23

Final Order. Under the Initial Order, the AU specifically found that authority exists for the
24

ComMission to grant a raffle gambling license to a ercdit union. This authority is contained in

26 RCW 9.46,0209(2)(a) vherebv statmorily a credit union is considered a bona [ide charitable or

27 nonprofit organization” for purposes of RCW 9.46.0315. See Initial Order, ¶ 5.20. Thus, the

28
Commission Staff should process and grant Numerica’s raffle gambling license based upon the

RESPONSE TO GAMBLING COMMiSSION STAFF’S
MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION OFTHE FINAL kA4 WITHERsPOON•KELLEY
ORDER - I Atlorneys & Counselors
{S1808338:2 1 422W. Riverside Avenue, Suite 1100 Phone: 509.624.5265

Spokane, Washington 99201.0300 Fax: 509.458.2728



I 03:39:20 p.m. 02—05—2019 I 4 I 15094582728 I
To: Page 4 of 6 2019-02-0600:19:11 (GMT) 15094582728 From: Witherspoon Kelley

I statutory criteria set forth in RCW 9.46.0209(2)(a).

2
B. Numerica satisfied the criteria set forth in RCW 9.46.0209(2;(a).

Under RCW 9.46.0209(2)a. Numeriea is deemed a ‘bona fide charitable or nonprofit
4

5
organization thu purposes of RCW 9.46.03 IS. Numericas Chief Financial Officer. Cindy

6 Leaver, swore under penalty of perjury that the Funds from Numerica’s proposed raffle would he

paid to various 501(c)(3) tax exempt charities devoted to purposes authorized under RCW
8

9.46,0209 for charitable and nonprofit organizations. See Initial Order, ¶4.10; see also Dccl. of

C. Leaver. [he Commission did not dispute this fact. See Initial Order, ¶4.10. Because

Numerica is statutorily a hona fide charitable or nonprofit organization and has affirmed to give

ID all of the revenue (less prizes and expenses) received from Numerica’s proposed raffle to

13 organizations devoted to charitable purposes. thcre is no reason for the Commission to not grant
11

Numeriea its raffle gambling license. The Commission should so order.
IS

C. WAC 230-03-115 does not appiy Numerica is statutorily a bona file
nonprofit organization.

17
The Staff Commission also seeks clarification as how to process Numerica’s application

pursuant to WAC 230-03 ef seq. and speciflcaIl. WAC 230-03-145. Clarification is not needed

20 because of the plain language of WAC 230-03-145; WAC 230-03-145 simply does not apply.

21 The first sentence of \1AC 230-03-145(1) explicitly states its purpose: ‘Organizations must

22 provide the following records for us to determine_the organization’s qualifications as a hona tide
23

chan aMeoi nonprofit organization s set fonh in RC\\ 9-it, 0209 lemphacic acded) Once
24

Numerica establishes that ii is a state or federal credit union (which is not disputed by the

26 Commission — sec Initial Order. ‘4.8). no further documentation is required or necessary to

27 establish Numcrica as a hona fide nonprofit organization. It is a bona tide nonprofit

‘S
organization by definition under RCW S. 46.0209(2)(a). To the extent any other provision of

RESPONSE TO CAMt3LING COMMISSION STAFF’S
MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION OF THE FINAL h4 WITHERSPO0N•KELLEY
ORDER -2 Atlorneys & Counselors
I51 808338:2 } 422 W. R’verstde Avenue, Suite IOU Phone 509 624 5265

Spokane, Washington 99201-0300 Fax: 509458.2728



To: Pagesof6 201 9-02-06 00:19:11 (GMT) 15094582728 From: Witherspoon Kelley

I 03:39:20 p.m. 02—05—2019 I 5 I 15094592728 I

I WAC 230-03 ci seq. relates to l’umcrica conducting an employee only ralile pursuant to RCW

2
9.46.0315 that does not to relate to Nurnerica establishing it is a hona tide charitable or

nonprofit organizat:on or affirming thc use of thc raffle proceeds, then Numeric will comply.

However, the Commission Staff failed to identify any such applicable rule or criteria.

6 B. A temporary license is not necessary as Numerica is entitled to a raffle
gambling license pursuant to RCW 9.46.0315.

Numerica has no objection to it being issued a temporary raffle gambling license

pursuant to RCW 9.46,070(l) and WAC 230-03-080(1). However, given that Numerica has (1)

established that is a state chartered credit union, and (2) affirmed to the use of the raffle

proceeds &ithout objection by the Commission. Numerica is unclear as to what additional

information or invesligalion may he required by the Commission in order to grant it a raffle
13

14 gambling license outright As a credit union. Numeriea is not a typical nonprofit organization: it

is is highly regulated by other state and federal agencies, It is unclear if the Commission Staff

understands or appreciates this fact. (liven the regula:oty regime imposed on Numerica pursuarn

17
to RCW 31.12 ci .ceq., INumerlea believes is has satisfied the requirements of RCW

Is

9.46.0209(2)(a) and WAC 230-03 et seq. for it to conduct an employee only raffle. The
19

20 Commission should grant Numerieas application for a raffle gambling license accordingly.

21 DATED this 5th day of February, 2019.

22 WITFIERSPOON • KELLE3Y

- Auortie[or_ApJ)2llctnt VzInie,’ica redu Lnon
26 )

28

RESPONSE TO GAMBLING COMMISSION STAFFS
MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION OFTHE FINAL kA4 vv ITHERSPOON ELLEY
ORDER 3 Attorneys & Counselors
{Si805338: 2 422W. lUversideAvenue, Suite 11(10 Phone: 509 624.5265

Spokane, Washington 99201-0300 Fax: 509 458.2728



To: Page6of6 201 9-02-06 00:19:11 (GMT) 15094582728 From: Witherspoon Kelley

03:39:20 p.m.02—05—2019 I 6 I 15094562726

CERTIFICATE: OF SERVICE

Pursuant to RCW QA,72.085, the undersigned hereby certifies under penalty of perjury
under the laws of the State of Washington, that on the tI1 day of February, 20 IS, the Ibregoing
RESPONSE TO GAMBLING COMMISSION STAFF’S MOT1ON FOR CLARIFICATION
was delivered to the following persons in the manner indicated:

Chad C. Standifer
Assistant Attorney General
Office of the Attorney General
1125 Washington St. SE
1S 40100
Olympia, WA 98504-0100
Aflorneyfor Gambling Commission

Haylee Mills
Staff Attorney
MS 40100
P0 Box 42400
Olympia. WA 98504-2400

D fly hand Delivery
D By U.S. Mail

By Overnight Mail
D By Facsimile Transmission

By Electronic Mail:
ch(?fL4Ic3.WA.GOV

E By Hand Delivery
By U.S. Mail

D 13y Overnight Mail
D liv Facsimile Transmission

By Electronic Mail:
hailev.inilesZi:oah.wa.gov

RESPONSE 10 GAMBLING COMMISSION STAll’S
MOTION FOR CLARIFIC AlION OF [HE FINAl
ORDER -1
Sl8O8338;2

WITHERSPoONKELLEY

Phone: 509 624.5265
Fax. 509.458 2728

2

3

2

6

7

S

9

0

II

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

23

24

26

28

KELLEY FLcRLiS
Legal Assistant

Altorneys & Con nselors

422 W. Rivers tOe Avenne. Suite 1100

Spokane, Washington 99201-0300















































Tab 6: FEBRUARY, 2019 Commission Meeting Agenda.           Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Bo Zarach, Bally Technologies/Scientific Games, Las Vegas, Nevada 

Background 

Bally Technologies/Scientific Games is proposing to amend WAC 230-16-151 so that specific gambling 
equipment can be connected to a secure cellular network for billing purposes only. Currently, gambling 
equipment can only be connected to external tools for standard maintenance through a closed network.  

Reason for the Rule Change 

This change would allow for a new billing option in card rooms and/or casinos where the establishment 
would only get billed for the shuffler when it was in use. It would save on costs for those card rooms 
and/or casinos that are only open or in use part time. Rather than paying a standard price for the shuffler, 
they would be charged only for the amount of successful shuffles. 
Attachments: 

• Letter from Bo Zarach, Bally Technologies/Scientific Games
• Petition
• Shuffler Flex Cellular System Overview
• WAC 230-16-151
• Proposed language

Policy Considerations 

Policy considerations include evaluating unintended consequences of using a secure cellular network, 
investigating the use of this billing option with other electronic gambling devices, evaluating whether all 
of the information included in the petitioner’s proposal is necessary for billing purposes, and defining 
terms within their proposal. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends accepting the petition and filing initial rule-making. Staff further recommends that 
because the use of a cellular network for billing purposes is not part of “standard maintenance” and 
because this concept may be applied to other types of gambling equipment, it would be better to adopt a 
new rule rather than amend WAC 230-16-151.  

Rule Petition to Amend   
WAC 230-16-151 Gambling equipment connecting to external tools for 

standard maintenance. 

February, 2019 – Discussion and Possible Filing 

















WAC 230-16-151 

Gambling equipment connecting to external tools for standard maintenance. 
(1) The following gambling equipment can be connected to external tools for standard 

maintenance only through a closed network: 
(a) Card shuffling devices; and  
(b) Ace finders or no peek devices; and 
(c) Similar gambling equipment that has been approved by us. 
(2) For purposes of this rule: 
(a) A closed network includes only the gambling equipment and the external tool. 
(b) Standard maintenance means: 
(i) Reviewing event logs on gambling equipment, which can consist of card and software 

errors.  
(ii) Installing and uninstalling card libraries and card calibration files. 
(iii) Configuring touch screen calibration. 
(iv) Gathering diagnostic information.  
(v) Verifying the hardware board type(s).  
(vi) Reviewing the number of times the equipment has been powered up. 
(vii) Reviewing the total number of operating cycles.  
(c) External tools may only include laptops, tablets, USB products, or similar products 

approved by us, containing troubleshooting programs, which will connect to the gambling equipment 
via their Ethernet or USB ports.  

(3) The following requirements apply when using external tools: 
(a) A functional replica of the external tools and their troubleshooting programs must be tested 

and approved by us before they are first used; and  
(b) During standard maintenance, the gambling equipment must not be in play or have access 

to live gaming data; and 
(c) Wireless capabilities must not be used when an external tool is connected to gambling 

equipment. If an external tool has wireless capabilities, it must be tested by us to ensure wireless 
capabilities are disabled when connected to the gambling equipment; and 

(d) There must be no access to the internet; and 
(e) The connection for maintenance must only exist while the manufacturer representative or 

distributor representative is performing maintenance; and 
(f) When standard maintenance is performed, the operator must keep a log in the format we 

require and access to the gambling equipment must be recorded by surveillance; and 
(g) The external tools must only be in possession of a manufacturer representative or 

distributor representative. 
 







Tab 7: FEBRUARY, 2019 Commission Meeting Agenda.        Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Washington State Gambling Commission Staff 

Background 

Bold = Changes made after the January 2019 Commission Meeting. 
RCW 9.46.215 states that the possession or transportation of gambling equipment is illegal, unless it is in 
the furtherance of a gambling activity authorized by RCW or Commission rule. WAC 230-12-337, now 
WAC 230-16-005, was adopted and became effective in July, 2006, allowing licensed manufacturers and 
distributors to transport, display, and take orders for authorized gambling equipment at trade shows and 
conventions. 
In 2018, there was a request to transport and display unapproved tribal lottery system machines at a 
Washington Indian Gaming Association tradeshow. Staff denied the request because the machines had not 
been tested in and approved by the Electronic Gaming Lab. Other instances have arose where 
manufacturers and/or distributors possessed gambling equipment, not yet approved by the Electronic 
Gaming Lab, in warehouses, which may be considered an unauthorized gambling activity.   

Commissioners approved to initiate rule making at the January, 2019 Commission meeting. 
Stakeholder meeting convened on January 24, 2019 to discuss timeline for clarifying WAC 230-16-
005 in time for the WIGA trade show and potential language. Draft language will be presented to 
the Commission at the March 14, 2019 meeting. Other areas of the rule surrounding possession, 
transportation, and storage of gambling equipment will continue to be addressed by the stakeholder 
group. 

Reason for the Rule Change 

Clarification is needed as to what types of gambling devices can be displayed at trade shows. Specifically: 

- Can devices that have not been approved by Washington State Gambling Commission but would
be used for authorized gambling activities be displayed at tradeshows?

- Can devices used for unauthorized activities be displayed at tradeshows?

Attachments: 

• WAC 230-16-005
• Email from Marcus Prater, AGEM
• Letter from Steve Bolz, Suquamish Tribal Gaming Commission
• Email from Lance Ledford, Tulalip Gaming Agency

Policy Considerations 

Rule Petition to Amend  
WAC 230-16-005 Transporting, displaying, and selling gambling equipment 

at trade shows and conventions. 

February, 2019 - Discussion 
January, 2019 – Discussion and Possible Filing 



WAC 230-05-050 may need to be updated. 

Stakeholder Feedback  
Marcus Prater, AGEM 

Steve Bolz, Suquamish Tribal Gaming Commission 
Lance Ledford, Tulalip Gaming Agency 

Staff Recommendation 
Further Discussion. 

 

WAC 230-16-005 

Transporting, displaying, and selling gambling equipment at trade shows and 
conventions. 

Licensed manufacturers and distributors selling gambling equipment authorized by state or 
federal law may transport, display, and accept orders for the sale or lease of their products at trade 
shows and conventions as long as: 

(1) They notify us in writing of the nature, date, and location ten days before the trade show or 
convention; and 

(2) Their target audience of the trade show or convention are operators of authorized gambling 
activities in Washington; and 

(3) They deliver all gambling equipment purchased or leased at the trade show or convention to 
the operator's authorized location. 
 



From: Marcus Prater
To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB)
Subject: RE: Tradeshow Discussion; January 10th
Date: Sunday, December 30, 2018 2:03:27 PM

The Association of Gaming Equipment Manufacturers (AGEM) would like to submit the following
as part of the public comment process:
 
“The Association of Gaming Equipment Manufacturers (AGEM), which represents all of the leading
slot machine and table game companies in the world and has 166 member companies from 22
countries, respectfully asks the Washington State Gambling Commission to update its rules to allow
suppliers to exhibit products in Washington that have not received final lab approvals. Trade show
environments in particular should allow for the latest games and technology to be displayed so that
the Washington market remains vibrant and strong and operators, and ultimately players, have as
many choices as possible to select from. As evidenced by trade shows in gaming markets around the
world, there is no downside to allowing this, and regulatory safeguards in Washington and all
gaming markets ensure unapproved software, slots, tables or other technology will never make it to
the live gaming floor. Thank you for your consideration and we look forward to working with you
on this effort going forward.”
 
MARCUS PRATER
Executive Director
Association of Gaming Equipment Manufacturers (AGEM)
E-mail - AGEM.org@cox.net
Phone - (702) 812-6932
Web - www.AGEM.org
 
From: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) [mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Friday, December 21, 2018 2:46 PM
To: 'Marcus Prater'
Subject: RE: Tradeshow Discussion; January 10th
 
They will.
 

From: Marcus Prater <agem.org@cox.net> 
Sent: Friday, December 21, 2018 2:45 PM
To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) <ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: RE: Tradeshow Discussion; January 10th
 
Thank you for this update. Will the comments submitted via email in advance of the meeting be
entered into the record as part of the public comment process? In other words, if we don’t have
someone there in person, will our comments count along with those there in person? Thanks
 
MARCUS PRATER
Executive Director
Association of Gaming Equipment Manufacturers (AGEM)
E-mail - AGEM.org@cox.net
Phone - (702) 812-6932
Web - www.AGEM.org
 
From: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) [mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Friday, December 21, 2018 2:05 PM

mailto:agem.org@cox.net
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:AGEM.org@cox.net
http://www.agem.org/
mailto:AGEM.org@cox.net
http://www.agem.org/
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov


To: 'Little, Dan'; 'agem.org@cox.net'; 'rebecca@washingtonindiangaming.org'
Cc: Considine, Brian (GMB)
Subject: Tradeshow Discussion; January 10th
 
Good afternoon,
 
I wanted to let you know that we’ll be discussing the need for clarification of  WAC 230-16-005-
Transporting, displaying, and selling gambling equipment at trade shows and conventions- at the
January Commission Meeting. You are welcome to attend (details below). There will be an
opportunity for public comment. If you’d like to submit materials to the Commission for their

consideration, please email them to me by January 2nd. Please feel free to pass this information on
to those on the call last month.
 
January Commission Meeting
 
Date:                     January 10, 2019 @ 9am PST
Location:              Hampton Inn & Suites

4301 Martin Way E.
Olympia, WA 98516

 
Please contact me if you have any questions. Thank you and have a great holiday!
 
Ashlie Laydon
Rules Coordinator
Legal and Records Division
Washington State Gambling Commission
(360) 486-3473
ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=230-16-005
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov




From: Lance Ledford
To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB)
Subject: Notice of Rule Making Tradeshows
Date: Tuesday, January 22, 2019 1:53:22 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

Notice of Rulemaking; Tradeshows.pdf

Good Afternoon,
The Tulalip Gaming Agency supports the Washington State Gambling Commission’s efforts to update
its rules to clarify and allow manufacturers and/or suppliers to showcase Class III gaming equipment
or product at a user conference or tradeshow location prior to that manufacturer or supplier having
to obtain approval through the standard WSGC EGL testing and approval process. In lieu, we may
support a limited scope authorization from WSGC for the specific purpose of gambling equipment
being exhibited or demonstrated at a user conference or trade show. It is well established and
understood in the Washington state gambling jurisdiction that before gaming equipment can be
offered for play on a live, production system; it must go through an independent testing lab, such as
GLI or BMM, as well as the WSGC EGL for its approval. Requiring a manufacturer or supplier to go
through the approval process prior to knowing whether there is an appetite for a particular game or
product can be a time consuming and expensive effort.
Please let me know if you have any questions or if we can be of any assistance.
Thanks,
Lance Ledford
Director | Tulalip Gaming Agency
Email | lledford@tulaliptga.org
Desk | 360.716.2011

“Regulation and Service with Integrity”

mailto:lledford@tulaliptga.org
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:lledford@tulaliptga.org




P.O. Box 42400 • Olympia, Washington 98504-2400 • (360) 486-3440 • TDD (360) 486-3637 • FAX (360) 486-3625 
 


 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 


GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 


 
January 16, 2019 


NOTICE OF RULE MAKING 


On January 10, 2019, the Commissioners voted to initiate rulemaking at the request of staff to 
clarify what types of gambling equipment can be displayed at tradeshows. 


Our next step is to meet with stakeholders to discuss the timeline for making possible changes to 
the Commission’s trade show rule. Our first meeting will be at 9:00am PST on January 24, 2019, 
at the Washington State Gambling Commission, 4565 7th Ave SE, Lacey, WA 98503. You are 
also welcome to participate by phone, please call (360) 407-3780, and dial 671925#. 


Once we have draft rules, the rules will be presented to the Commissioners for their review and 
consideration. You can follow the rules process each month by reviewing the Complete 
Commission Packets that are posted a week prior to the monthly meeting under the Public 
Meetings section of our website, www.wsgc.wa.gov.  


You can provide feedback by calling me, sending me a letter or email, by providing public 
comment to the Commissioners at a commission meeting, or providing comment through our 
agency website. 


If you have any questions about this petition or the process, please feel free to contact me at 
(360) 486-3473 or at Ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov.  


Sincerely,  


 


Ashlie Laydon  
Rules Coordinator 
Legal and Records Division 



http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/

mailto:Ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov



		“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”





 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
February 4, 2019 
 
 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  
  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Representative Derek Stanford 
   Christopher Stearns    Representative Brandon Vick 
   Ed Troyer 
   Alicia Levy     
      
FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  
 
SUBJECT:  LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
 
We are already into the fourth week of the 2019 105-day session.  The following legislative 
cutoffs are happening soon: 

• Friday, February 22, 2019 - Policy committee cutoff;  
• Friday, March 1, 2019 - Fiscal committee cutoff; and 
• Wednesday, March 13, 2019 - Last day bills can be considered in its house of origin. 

 
Below is a summary of noteworthy bills we are currently tracking, including our agency request 
bills.  I’ve also identified bills that you may wish to take action on under the possible legislation 
action item section.   
 
Agency Request Legislation: 
 

1. HB 1302 and SB 5416, Gambling Self Exclusion  
HB 1302 was heard in the House Commerce and Gaming Committee on January 29, 
2019.  Commissioner Patterson, Commissioner Stearns, and Director Trujillo testified in 
support of our agency request bill.  The committee amended the bill to include the 
Lottery Commission at their February 4, 2019 committee meeting.  Then, the committee 
passed the bill out unanimously. 

 
SB 5416 was heard in the Senate Labor and Commerce Committee on January 22, 2019.  
The expectation is the bill will be placed on the committee agenda for executive action 
and passed out of committee prior to the February 22, 2019 cutoff. 

 
 
 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
February 4, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
Bills Supported by the Commission 
 

2. HB 1064 and SB 5029, Concerning law enforcement 
Representative Goodman’s HB 1064 is an amendment to I-940.  The bill was passed by 
the Legislature and signed by the Governor on February 4, 2019. 
 
The bill modifies I-940’s provisions relating to training, the criminal liability standard for 
use of deadly force, independent investigations of deadly force incidents, and rendering 
of first aid. It also requires the state to reimburse a peace officer for reasonable defense 
costs when he or she is found not guilty or charges are dismissed in certain 
circumstances. 
 

Possible Legislation Action Items: 
 

3. HB 1880 and SB 5818, Creating a joint legislative task force on problem gambling 
(attached) 
Representative Kloba’s HB 1880 and Senator Conway’s SB 5818 establish a joint 
legislative task force on problem gambling. These bills are filed in anticipation of the 
Commission’s forthcoming problem gambling study and recommendations. The bills 
establish a task force until November 30, 2022; identify proposed members of the task 
force; and identify topics the task force will cover and make recommendations on. The 
bills are expected to be amended once the Commission’s problem gambling study and 
recommendations are released and as input is received from stakeholders.    
 

4. HB 1159, Changing the definition of theft (attached) 
Representative Griffey’s HB 1159 amends the definition of "theft" for purposes of theft-
related offenses to include concealing the property of another intending to deprive the 
other person of its use or benefit.  This bill is meant to address issues related to retail 
theft but it is applicable to violations that can occur in the gambling industry, including 
players/dealers that conceal chips or other things of value with the intent to steal them.     
 
The bill was heard in the House Public Safety Committee and will likely be passed out of 
the committee during the week of February 4, 2019. 

 
5. HB 1356, Concerning privileged communication with peer support group 

counselors (attached) 
Representative Lovick’s HB 1356 establishes a testimonial privilege for communications 
made by a first responder or local jail staff person to a designated peer support group 
counselor while receiving counseling based on an incident while acting in their official 
capacity. The privilege applies under the same standards and conditions that apply to the 
privilege for communications by a law enforcement officer or firefighter to a peer support 
group counselor. 
 
The bill was heard in the House Civil Rights and Judiciary Committee and is scheduled 
for executive action on February 8, 2019. 
 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
February 4, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 
Bills with Direct Gambling Industry Impacts 
 

6. HB 1343 and SB 5129, Increasing revenues for the support of state government 
Representative Tarleton and Senator Rolfes bills are OFM request bills that imposes a 
capital gains tax and increases business and occupation (B&O) tax rate on service-related 
activities from 1.5 percent to 2.5 percent, including the B&O tax for games of chance.  
 
The bill had a hearing in the Senate but no executive action scheduled at this time.  There 
has been no hearing in the House at this time. 
 

Law Enforcement Bills 
 

7. HB 1269, Concerning seizure and forfeiture procedures and reporting 
Representatives Shea and Goodman’s HB 1269 addresses civil forfeiture standards and 
reporting.  I briefed you on this bill during last session.  It does not amend the Gambling 
Act, but it creates new civil forfeiture reporting requirements for the Commission and all 
other law enforcement agencies.  WASPC and other stakeholders have taken the lead on 
this bill due to concerns with some language in the bill, including some reporting 
requirements and ability of the Treasurer’s office charging a fee for reports we are 
required to submit under this bill.   
 
The bill was heard in the House Civil Rights and Judiciary Committee on January 29, 
2019 and is scheduled for executive action on February 8, 2019. We have concerns but I 
recommend taking no action at this time since the Gambling Act is not amended. 

 
8. HB 1253, Concerning the timeline for commencing basic law enforcement training 

Representative Kloba’s HB 1253 requires newly hired law enforcement personnel to 
commence Basic Law Enforcement Academy training within two months of 
employment, rather than within six months as currently required.  This could benefit the 
Gambling Commission because it will require the Legislature to fund additional CJTC 
academy classes that should allow for our new special agents to enter the academy sooner 
then what is currently occurring.   
 
The bill was heard in House Public Safety and passed out of the Committee on January 
31, 2019. 

 
9. SB 5121, Concerning embezzlement 

Senator Honeyford’s SB 5121 creates new criminal violations and penalties for 
embezzlement—financial fraud where money and property is stolen from a person or 
business. This bill is likely applicable to violations that can occur in the gambling 
industry and could help the Commission when investigating criminal conduct against 
gambling commercial and nonprofit organizations.     
 
The bill was referred to the Senate Law and Justice Committee and has not been 
scheduled for a hearing at this time. 
 

 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
February 4, 2019 
Page 4 
 
 
Budget Bills 
 

10. HB 1109 and SB 5153, operating appropriations 
The House and Senate have filed their proposed 2019-21 operational budget bills.  
Neither bill currently impacts our gambling revolving account and funds the Problem 
Gambling Account at approximately $1.4 million for the biennium.  It is early in the 
budgeting process and I will inform you of any changes that will impact the agency or the 
gambling revolving account as amendments are made. 

 
 
Public Records Act and State Government Bills 
 

11. HB 1537, HB 1538, SB 5246, Sunshine committee recommendations; and 
HB 1667, SB 5667, concerning public records request administration 
These bills could have an impact on the agency’s administration of its public disclosure 
program.  These bills address different types of information collected and stored by the 
agency, including certain types of personal information and trade secrets, and potentially 
helpful changes to agency reporting requirements imposed by the legislature last year. 
 
These bills are scheduled, or expected to be scheduled, for hearings in the House State 
Government and Tribal Relations and Senate State Government, Tribal Relations & 
Elections Committees.  I will brief these bills more in depth for our March meeting, if 
they make it out of committee. 
 

12. HB 1071 and SB 5064, Protecting personal information 
HB 1840, Payment credentials and other sensitive data from state data networks;  
HB 1844, Modular contracting for IT procurement by state agencies;  
SB 5377, Data sales and governance; and 
SB 5662, Cloud computing solutions;  
Many Legislators have prioritized ensuring that information collected and disseminated 
by government agencies is protected against data breaches and only used for purposes 
approved by the Legislature. These bills address the security and management of the 
agency’s information technology infrastructure.  Each bill could impact the agency and 
how it manages electronic information collected and used for its law enforcement and 
regulatory work. 
 
These bills are scheduled, or expected to be scheduled, for hearings in various House and 
Senate Committees.  I will brief these bills more in depth for our March meeting, if they 
make it out of committee. 
 

Legislative Work Session 
 
The House Commerce and Gaming Committee held two work sessions.  Director Trujillo 
and I gave an agency overview on January 15, 2019.  The Committee also held a work 
session on January 22, 2019 on public health and societal costs related to issues that come 
before the Committee, including discussion on problem gambling.  Michael Langer, 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
February 4, 2019 
Page 5 
 
 

Health Care Authority, and Maureen Greeley, Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling 
provided an overview of current problem gambling state resources and services. 
 
Director Trujillo and I also gave an agency overview to the Senate Labor and Commerce 
Committee on January 22, 2019. 
 
























	February Commission Packet
	Tab 1
	Tab 1 Sports Memo
	Tab 3 Defaults
	Tab 4 Numerica
	Tab 5 Puget Sound Flyers
	Tab 6
	Tab 7
	Tab 8 Legislative Update



